# Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd

ACN 613 827 311

Financial Report for the period ended 31 December 2020

# **Contents**

Directors' Report	2
Independent Auditor's Report	4
Directors' Declaration	6
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December 2020	
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020	8
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 December 2020	9
Statement of cash flows for the period ended 31 December 2020	10
1. Summary of accounting policies	11
2. Income taxes	16
3. Exploration and evaluation expenditure	17
4. Trade and other payables	17
5. Borrowings – current	17
6. Provisions – non-current	17
7. Segment Reporting	17
8. Issued Capital	18
9. Related party transactions	18
10. Financial instruments	18
11. Commitments for expenditure	19
12. Events after the reporting period	19
Additional company information	19

# **Directors' Report**

The directors of Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd ("MEL")("the Company") submit herewith the financial report of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2020. The directors report as follows:

#### **Directors**

The names of the directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial period are:

#### Name

Christopher Reed (Appointed 27 April 2018) Steven Cole (Appointed 15 August 2018)

The above named directors held office during and since the end of the financial period unless otherwise stated.

## **Principal activities**

The Company's principal activities during the period consisted of the continued exploration and evaluation of the Mt Edwards Project.

#### **Review of operations**

Since acquisition in 2018, drill programs at Mt Edwards have defined high grade massive nickel mineralisation and several Mineral Resources have been reviewed with estimates updated. Successful exploration outcomes at Mt Edwards are driving development of a pipeline of short lead time nickel sulphide deposits being evaluated and undergoing mining studies. Exploration results to date have provided strong encouragement regarding alternatives to realise value at Mt Edwards.

The Mt Edwards project is located 90km south of Kalgoorlie and 35km south west of Kambalda in Western Australia. The tenements cover an area of 300km2 across the Widgiemooltha Dome nickel sulphide belt and host 147,000 tonnes of contained nickel estimated across eleven nickel sulphide Mineral Resources (for full details refer to ASX announcement entitled "Zabel Mineral Resource Update at Mt Edwards" released on 23rd December 2020).

During the period, exploration activities advanced with updates to the nickel sulphide Mineral Resources at the 132N and Zabel deposits. A soil sampling campaign continued with areas in the western dome assayed for a 48 multi-elements suite. In addition, mining studies continued on four of the Mt Edwards short lead time deposits, being Armstrong, Widgie Townsite and Gillett and now 132N. Exploration planning using geological and geophysical interpretation has been undertaken across the Mt Edwards tenure.

## Share options granted to directors and senior management

During and since the end of the financial period, no options over unissued shares or unissued interests of the company were granted to the directors as part of their remuneration.

#### Changes in state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs.

## **Events after the reporting period**

No matters have arisen since 31 December 2020 that would be likely to materially affect the operations of the Company, or its state of affairs which has not otherwise been disclosed in this financial report.

#### **Future developments**

The Company intends to continue exploration and evaluation of the Mt Edwards Project, to realise value.

#### **Environmental regulations**

The Company is aware of its responsibility to impact as little as possible on the environment and, where there is any disturbance, to rehabilitate sites. During the period the majority of work carried out was in Western Australia and the Company followed procedures and pursued objectives in line with guidelines published by the Western Australian Government. These guidelines are quite detailed and encompass the impact on owners and land users, heritage, health and safety and proper restoration practices. The Company adheres to regulatory guidelines, and any local conditions applicable. The Company has not been in breach of any State or Commonwealth environmental rules or regulations during the period.

# **Dividends**

Since the start of the financial period, no amount, has been paid or declared by way of dividend (2019 – nil).

# Proceedings on behalf of the company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

On behalf of the Directors

Christopher Reed

Cheed.

Director

West Perth, WA, 30 April 2021



Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ABN 74 490 121 060

Tower 2, Brookfield Place 123 St Georges Terrace Perth WA 6000 GPO Box A46 Perth WA 6837 Australia

Tel: +61 8 9365 7000 Fax: +61 8 9365 7001 www.deloitte.com.au

# Independent Auditor's Review Report to the members of Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd

#### Report on half year Financial Report

We have reviewed the half-year financial report of Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd (the "Company") which comprises the condensed statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the condensed statement of comprehensive income, the condensed statement of cash flows and the condensed statement of changes in equity for the half-year ended on that date, notes comprising a statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration as set out on pages 6 to 19.

Directors' Responsibilities for the Half-year Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the half-year financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and for such internal control as the directors6 determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the half-year financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the half-year financial report based on our review. We conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 *Review of a Financial Report Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity,* in order to state whether, on the basis of the procedures described, anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the half-year financial report is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards. As the auditor of Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd, ASRE 2410 requires that we comply with the ethical requirements relevant to the audit of the annual financial report.

A review of a half-year financial report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

# **Deloitte.**

#### Conclusion

Based on our review, which is not an audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the half-year financial report of Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd does not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its financial performance for the half-year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Veloitte Touche Tohmatsu
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Ian Skelton

Partner

Chartered Accountants Perth, 30 April 2021

# **Directors' Declaration**

The directors declare that:

- a) in the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable;
- b) the attached financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards as stated in note 1 to the financial statements; and
- c) in the directors' opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in compliance with the accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the consolidated entity.

On behalf of the Directors

Christopher Reed

GReed.

Director

West Perth, WA, 30 April 2021

# Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December 2020

	Note	31 Dec 2020 \$	31 Dec 2019 \$
Revenue		-	-
Cost of sales		-	
Gross profit		-	-
Administration expenses		51,739	17,719
Employee expenses		-	2,990
Occupancy expenses		-	2,277
Loss before tax		51,739	22,986
Income tax expense	2	-	-
Loss for the period		51,739	22,986
Other comprehensive income		-	-
Total comprehensive loss for the period		51,739	22,986

# Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020

		31 Dec 2020	30 June 2020
	Note	\$	\$
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents		54,184	166,809
Trade and other receivables			19,394
Total current assets		54,184	186,203
Non-current assets			
Exploration and evaluation expenditure	3	2,068,193	2,003,995
Total non-current assets		2,068,193	2,003,995
Total assets		2,122,377	2,190,198
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	4	(22,214)	-
Borrowings	5	(2,175,204)	(2,213,500)
Total current liabilities		(2,197,418)	(2,213,500)
Non-current liabilities			
Provisions	6	(37,500)	(37,500)
Total non-current liabilities		(37,500)	(37,500)
Total liabilities		(2,234,918)	(2,251,000)
Net liability		(112,541)	(60,802)
Equity			
Issued capital	8	130,000	130,000
Accumulated losses		(242,541)	(190,802)
Total equity		(112,541)	(60,802)

# Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 December 2020

	Issued Capital	Accumulated Losses	Total equity
	\$	\$	\$
Balance at 1 July 2019	130,000	(163,539)	(33,539)
Loss for the period	_	(27,263)	(27,263)
Other comprehensive income		-	-
Issue of Share Capital		-	
Balance at 30 June 2020	130,000	(190,802)	(60,802)
Loss for the period	-	(51,739)	(51,739)
Other comprehensive income		-	-
Issue of Share Capital		-	
Balance at 31 December 2020	130,000	(242,541)	(112,541)

# Statement of cash flows for the period ended 31 December 2020

		31 December 2020	31 December 2019
	Note	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities			
Payments to suppliers and employees	-	(51,739)	(22,986)
Net cash used in operating activities	. <u>-</u>	(51,739)	(22,986)
Cash flows from investing activities			
Payments for exploration, evaluation and development expenditure	. <u>-</u>	(60,320)	(339,624)
Net cash used in investing activities	. <u>-</u>	(60,320)	(339,624)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Proceeds of loan from related parties	. <u>-</u>	(566)	485,172
Net cash provided by financing activities	. <u>-</u>	(566)	485,172
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents	. <u>-</u>	(112,625)	122,562
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial period	-	166,809	-
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial period	-	54,184	122,562

# 1. Summary of accounting policies

#### **General Information**

#### **Financial reporting framework**

Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd is a private company incorporated in Australia. The principal activities of the Company are mineral exploration.

For the purposes of preparing the financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.

#### Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and complies with other requirements of the law.

Accounting Standards include Australian Accounting Standards. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes of the Company comply with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

#### **Basis of preparation**

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those adopted and disclosed in the Company's 2020 Annual Financial Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2020, except for the impact of the Standards and Interpretations described below. These accounting policies are consistent with Australian Accounting Standards and with IRFS.

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Boards ("AASB") that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period beginning 1 July 2020.

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost except for the revaluation of certain non-financial assets and financial instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

#### Standards and interpretations adopted in the current period

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board that are relevant to its operations and were effective for the current financial reporting period beginning 1 July 2020.

The impact of the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations did not have a material impact on the Company.

#### Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to account estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

#### Critical judgments in applying the Company's accounting policies

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below or elsewhere in the financial statements.

#### Recovery of capitalised exploration evaluation and development expenditure

Determining the recoverability of exploration and evaluation expenditure capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy requires estimates and assumptions as to future events and circumstances whether successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively sale, of the respective areas of interest will be achieved. Critical to this assessment is estimates and assumptions as to ore reserves, the timing of expected cash flows, exchange rates, commodity prices and future capital requirements. Changes in these estimates and assumptions as new information about the presence or recoverability of an ore reserve becomes available, may impact the assessment of the recoverable amount of exploration and evaluation assets. If, after having capitalised the expenditure under the accounting policy, a judgement is made that recovery of the expenditure is unlikely, an impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income in accordance with the accounting policy. The carrying amounts of exploration and evaluation assets are set out in note 3.

#### **Significant Accounting Policies**

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report:

#### a) Going concern basis

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting, which contemplates the continuity of normal business activity, realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business. For the period ended 31 December 2020, Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd incurred a net loss of \$51,739 (June 2020: \$27,263) and net operating cash outflows of \$112,059 (June 2020: \$519,097 net outflow). The company had cash and cash equivalents of \$54,184 (June 2020: \$166,809) and net current liabilities of \$2,143,234 (June 2020: \$2,027,296).

Having regard to these matters, the directors are nonetheless of the opinion that the going concern basis upon which the financial report is prepared continues to be appropriate having received a letter of support from the ultimate controlling entity, Neometals Limited, for the next twelve months from the date of authorisation of these financial statements. The letter of support is to provide financial support to allow the Company to operate as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months from date of signing the Company's financial statements. The letter of support outlines that Neometals Ltd will not call on any amounts due from the Company for at least 12 months from date of signing the financial statements and will continue to provide an appropriate level of financial support to ensure the Company is in a position to meet its financial liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due.

The Company's cash position reflects that the Company will need to obtain additional working capital during the coming financial period, to enable the Company to continue to meet its current committed administration and exploration expenditure.

Notwithstanding the above matters, the Directors are satisfied they will be able to access financial support from the ultimate parent, Neometals Ltd, as required and thus it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

In arriving at this position the Directors have considered the following pertinent matters:

- The planned exploration expenditure is staged and expenditure may or may not be spent depending on the result of the prior exploration stage; and
- The Directors are satisfied that they will be able to access additional funds by Parent Company support to fund ongoing exploration commitments and for working capital.

In the event that the Company is unable to obtain additional funds to meet the Company's ongoing working capital requirements when required, there is a significant uncertainty as to whether the Company will be able to meet its debts as and when they fall due and thus continue as a going concern.

The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts, nor to the amounts or classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company not be able to continue as a going concern.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

#### b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash in banks with maturity of less than 3 months.

#### c) Financial assets

#### **Financial Assets**

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs except where the instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or loss' in which case transaction costs are expensed immediately.

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value where possible. The Company does not designate any interest in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture entities as being subject to the requirements of accounting standards specifically applicable to financial instruments.

Amortised cost instruments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

#### Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at their transaction price and other receivables at fair value. Receivables that are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest are classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Receivables that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are measured at FVPL.

#### d) Foreign currency

#### Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

#### e) Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:

- i) where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or
- ii) for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

#### f) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

#### f) Impairment of assets (cont'd)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

#### g) Income tax

#### **Current tax**

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).

#### Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

#### Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.

#### h) Payables

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Company becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

#### i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

#### j) Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditures in relation to separate areas of interest are capitalised in the period in which they are incurred and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses where the following conditions are satisfied;

- (i) the rights to tenure of the area of interest are current; and
- (ii) at least one of the following conditions is also met:
  - the exploration and evaluation expenditures are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploration of the area of interest, or alternatively, by its sale; or
  - exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not at the reporting date reached a stage
    which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves,
    and active and significant operations in, or in relation to, the area of interest are continuing.

Exploration and evaluation assets include:

- Acquisition of rights to explore;
- Topographical, geological, geochemical and geophysical studies;
- Exploratory drilling, trenching, and sampling and
- Activities in relation to evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the mineral resource.

General and administrative costs are allocated to, and included in, the cost of exploration and evaluation assets only to the extent that those costs can be related directly to the operational activities in the area of interest to which the exploration and evaluation assets relate. In all other instances, these costs are expensed as incurred.

Exploration and evaluation assets are transferred to Development Assets once technical feasibility and commercial viability of an area of interest is demonstrable. Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment, and any impairment loss is recognised prior to being reclassified.

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is dependent on successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the respective area of interest.

#### Impairment testing of exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if sufficient data exists to determine technical feasibility and commercial viability or facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

#### j) Exploration and evaluation expenditure (cont'd)

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment when any of the following facts and circumstances exist:

- The term of exploration licence in the specific area of interest has expired during the reporting period or will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;
- Substantive expenditure on further exploitation for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area are not budgeted or planned;
- Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the discovery of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the decision was made to discontinue such activities in the specified are; or
- Sufficient data exists to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
  carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
  development of by sale.

Where a potential impairment is indicated, an assessment is performed for each cash generating unit which is no larger than the area of interest. The Company performs impairment testing in accordance with the accounting policy.

2. Income taxes	31 December 2020	31 December 2019
	\$	\$
Loss from continuing operations	51,739	22,986
Income tax expense calculated at 30%	15,522	6,896
Effect of income and expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit	(15,522)	(6,896)
Income tax expense recognised		

The tax rate used in the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by Australian corporate entities on taxable income under Australian tax law. There has been no change in the corporate tax rate during the reporting period.

#### **Tax Consolidation**

# Relevance of tax consolidation to the consolidated entity

Mt Edwards Pty Ltd is part of a tax-consolidated group, having entered into a tax funding arrangement and a tax sharing agreement with the head entity, Neometals Ltd. Under the terms of the tax funding arrangement, Mt Edwards have agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment to or from the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax assets of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts receivable from or payable to each entity in the tax consolidated group and are eliminated on consolidation. The tax sharing agreement entered into between the members of the tax-consolidated group provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its payment obligations or if an entity should leave the tax-consolidated group. The effect of the tax sharing agreement is that each member's tax liability for tax payable by the tax-consolidated group is limited to the amount payable to the head entity under the tax funding arrangement.

# 3. Exploration and evaluation expenditure

	31 December 2020	30 June 2020
Gross carrying amount	<b>\$</b>	\$
Opening balance	2,003,995	1,563,039
Acquisition costs	-	300,000
Additions	64,198	140,956
Closing balance	2,068,193	2,003,995

The recovery of exploration expenditure carried forward is dependent upon the discovery of commercially viable mineral and other natural resource deposits, their development and exploration, or alternatively their sale.

4.	Trade and other payables	31 December 2020	30 June 2020
		<u> </u>	\$
	Trade creditors	(3,877)	-
	Other payables	(18,337)	-
		(22,214)	-

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days. No interest is charged on the trade payables. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to help ensure that all payables are paid within the settlement terms.

5.	Borrowings – current	31 December 2020	30 June 2020
٠.		\$	\$
	Owing to Neometals Ltd <sup>(i)</sup>	(2,175,203)	(2,213,500)
		(2,175,203)	(2,213,500)

(i) Borrowings from related parties are repayable on demand. The average effective interest rate on borrowings from related parties is 0% per annum.

6.	Provisions – non-current	31 December 2020	30 June 2020
		<u> </u>	\$
	Rehabilitation provision	(37,500)	(37,500)
		(37,500)	(37,500)

The Company is required to rehabilitate mining and exploration sites at the end of mining or exploration, to a condition acceptable to the relevant authorities, as specified in licence requirements and the Company's environmental charter. The provision balance includes costs for rehabilitation monitoring, site inspections, annual reporting, and other administrative costs.

# 7. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are identified and segment information disclosed on the basis of internal reports that are regularly provided to, or reviewed by, the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker which, for the Company, is the Board of Directors. In this regard, such information is provided using similar measures to those used in preparing the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position. The Company operates in the mineral exploration industry in Australia. The financial results from this segment are equivalent to the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

	31 December	30 June
8. Issued Capital	2020	2020
	<u> </u>	\$
Fully paid ordinary shares	(130,000)	(130,000)

At the end of the period Neometals held 530 shares in Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd (2019: 530).

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends. Changes to the then corporations Law abolished the authorised capital and par value concept in relation to share capital from 1 July 1998. Therefore, the Company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital and issued shares do not have a par value.

#### **Share options**

At balance date there were no share options in existence over ordinary shares (30 June 2020: nil).

## 9. Related party transactions

	31 December 2020	30 June 2020
	<u> </u>	\$
Loans from related parties (i)	(2,175,203)	(2,213,500)
	(2,175,203)	(2,213,500)

(i) The Entity has been provided loans with no interest payable. The loans from the ultimate controlling party are unsecured.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The renumeration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, is provided by the parent Company, Neometals Ltd.

#### 10. Financial instruments

# (a) Financial risk management objectives

The Entity does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

#### (b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

## (c) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the entity. The entity has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit-worthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The entity exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

The entity does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

#### (d) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

In addition to financial liabilities, the Company is required to meet minimum spend commitments to maintain the tenure over the Company's mineral exploration areas as described in note 11.

#### (e) Fair value

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements approximates their respective net fair values.

# 11. Commitments for expenditure

The entity holds mineral exploration licences in order for it to undertake its exploration and evaluation activities. To continue to hold tenure over these areas the entity is required to undertake a minimum level of expenditure on or in relation to the leases. Minimum expenditure commitments for the exploration and mining leases are \$932,980 per annum. Due to the nature of this expenditure, in that the expenditure commitments may be reduced by the relinquishment of tenements, estimates for the commitment have not been forecast beyond one year. However, should the Company continue to hold the tenements beyond this date additional expenditure commitments would arise.

# 12. Events after the reporting period

There are no events subsequent to balance date that require disclosure in the financial statements.

# **Additional company information**

Mt Edwards Lithium Pty Ltd is a proprietary company, incorporated and operating in Australia.

Registered Office Level 1, 1292 Hay Street West Perth WA 6005 Principal place of business Level 1, 1292 Hay Street West Perth WA 6005